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County of Alameda, General Services Agency – Purchasing

RFP No. 900977, Addendum No. 2

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS
to

RFP No. 901715
for

Emergency Transitional Housing: Non-Minor Dependents, Transition Aged-Youth
Summary of Q&A Submitted

Networking/Bidders Conferences held on February 22, 2019
	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), Questions & Answers Document (Q&A) has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This Q&A Document will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://www.acgov.org/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/ContractOpportunities.jsp.


Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

The following Sections have been modified or revised as shown below.  Changes made to the original RFP document are in bold print and highlighted, and deletions made have a strike through.

RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS
Q1) Will the Contractor be required to have site control over building?
A1) As stated on page 7 of the RFP, Section B (SCOPE/BACKGROUND), Item 4.a.: 

Contractor shall ensure that all housing sites/units must meet habitability standards and be in a secure environment. The Contractor must demonstrate site control through ownership, a lease, or an MOU or an ability to have a site control…
Q2) Page 9 of RFP, C (BIDDER MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS), Item 3. states:
Bidder shall possess all permits, licenses and professional credentials necessary to supply product and/or perform services as specified under in Exhibit A in this RFP.

Can the County specify what licenses are needed?
A2) The above statement refers to permits, licenses and professional credentials for the services the bidder is proposing. These will vary based upon the services proposed by the bidder.  Bidder(s) shall include in their bid response what other credentials they do have.  However, the awarded bidder(s) will be required to have a Community Care Licensing (CCL), in particular, the Transitional Housing Placement Program (THPP) with the State.  Please see Addendum No. 2 to RFP No. 901715 for additional details regarding this requirement. 

For awarded bidder(s) who do not currently have the required THPP licensing and you’re proposing to dedicate your emergency housing services exclusively to Alameda County Probation Department’s (ACPD) population, ACPD will assume all cost associated with obtaining the required THPP licensing, such as the orientation cost and application fee.  Bidders shall include these costs into their Budget Narrative submittal. 

For awarded bidders not dedicating their emergency housing services exclusively to ACPD’s population, ACPD will work collaboratively with the awarded bidder(s) and CCL to ensure the required license will be obtained, but the awarded bidder(s) will be required to assume all cost for the THPP licensing. 
If you have any additional questions regarding the CCL process, please contact Statewide Children's Residential Program Office:

744 P Street, MS T9-15-54

Sacramento, CA 95814

Telephone: (916) 651-5380

Email: cclwebmaster@dss.ca.gov 
In addition, the awarded bidders for this contract will also go through Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) training provided by Alameda County.
Q3) It’s unclear in the RFP if bidders need to have the CCL.  If yes, will the County allow a runway of time for awarded bidders to obtain licensing if they don’t currently have it because the process for licensing can take a considerable amount of time? 
A3) Awarded bidder(s) will be required to have CCL, in particular, the THPP with the State.  For those awarded bidder(s) who do not currently have the license, ACPD will require you to obtain the license within 90 days of the contract start date. Please see Addendum No. 2 to RFP No. 901715 for additional details regarding this requirement.
For awarded bidder(s) who do not currently have the required THPP licensing and you’re proposing to dedicate your emergency housing services exclusively to Alameda County Probation Department’s (ACPD) population, ACPD will assume all cost associated with obtaining the required THPP licensing, such as the orientation cost and application fee.  Bidders shall include these costs into their Budget Narrative submittal. 

For awarded bidders not dedicating their emergency housing services exclusively to ACPD’s population, ACPD will work collaboratively with the awarded bidder(s) and CCL to ensure the required license will be obtained, but the awarded bidder(s) will be required to assume all cost for the THPP licensing. 
Q4) How long does the licensing process for a CCL? 
A4) ACPD does not process licensing for a CCL. However, a break-down of the licensing process is outlined below: 
a.       Applicants must submit an attendance request and then attend a category specific orientation with CCL. 

· The Transitional Housing Placement Program THPP licensing is required for this RFP. 
· These are conducted in both the San Bruno and San Jose offices. Any orientation is valid statewide. There is a $50 fee per attendee.
b.       Applicants submit an application to the correct geographical CCL office (for Alameda County, that is in the San Bruno office), along with their application fee (fee amount is based on capacity) and their County Certificate of Approval (Alameda County will provide Certificate of Approval for awarded bidders).
c.       CCL strives to have the application processed within 90 days; however, CCL may be able to expedite this request for awarded bidder(s) on this RFP.

Q5) The CCL licensing process can be lengthy. Is there something particular that coincides with this specific program that the County can speak to?
A5) ACPD does not process CCL applications. CCL does strive to have the application processed within 90 days; however, CCL may be able to expedite this request for awarded bidder(s) on this RFP, so it will not take up a year.  ACPD has an immediate need which is why the RFP is currently being issued. 

If you have any additional questions regarding the CCL process, please contact Statewide Children's Residential Program Office.

Q6) Currently there aren’t many vendors in place that provide emergency transitional housing, and even at the state level they have had problems getting vendors licensed. Is there a process in place between the County and State to help facilitate the need?
A6) No, there is no process in place between the County and State to help facilitate this need.  

Q7) Is it possible when calling out the population to be served, Non-Minor Dependents and Transition Aged-Youth ages 18-21 that might not either have their AB12 status activated, or be Non-Minor Dependents, can those youth live in the emergency transitional housing that’s already in place by HUD without a license? 
A7) No, awarded bidder(s) will be required to have CCL, in particular, the THPP with the State. 
Q8) Can the County confirm if it is two different set of youth that can come through for services?
A8) Yes, there are two different populations described in this RFP, NMD and TAY. 
Q9) For youth being referred by ACPD, what type of services/programs should bidders include in their proposal? 
A9) At minimum, bidder(s) shall propose services that help them meet the Program Framework requirements (page 9-12 of the RFP) specified in the RFP.  Case management services should include intake and assessment, benefits advocacy and assistance, and referral services. Most young people need mental health services. They’re battling depression in addition to a number of other things they battle, so if a bidder offers mental health services that would be a bonus.

For TAY, services are started through ACPD and we are looking to transfer youth into programs where those services are continued through vendors.  
For Non-Minor Dependents that are AB12, these are youth that were previously on a placement order meaning they were on probation, removed from their parents’ home, placed in out-of-home care and under a placement order when they turned 18 years old. At this point, they become eligible for these extended foster care services and delinquency jurisdiction is terminated.  
Q10) Are mental health services required?
A10) No, mental health services are not required but ACPD would like case management services that will support a secure living environment that works towards fostering stability, health and self determination to help youth move to more long-term housing. Services can be provided on site or leveraged using a collaborative model with other youth agencies. 
Q11) Should bidders hire mental health consultants outside off staff that do case management to provide mental health services? 
A11) It’s the bidder(s) choice to hire mental health providers or refer youth to outside services. 

Bidders shall describe their approach in their bid response and it will be evaluated accordingly. 
Q12) Is the County recommending bidders to partner with other County programs (ex. Behavioral Health) to provide services?
A12) No.  Bidders shall describe their approach in their bid response and it will be evaluated accordingly. 
Q13) What types of youth will be referred? Is it a specific range or population of youth being referred?
A13) AB 12/Non-Minor Dependents and Transition Aged Youth, 18-24. These youth may be coming from Department of Juvenile Justice (DJJ) or the TAY unit and have housing instability. In addition, all youth will have an assessment performed by their Probation Officer that the Emergency Transitional Housing Contractors will have access to.
Q14) Can the County provide any information on capacity? And what are the numbers? About how many youth?
A14) No. Bidders are required to indicate their capacity on the Bid Form (page 8 of Exhibit A - Bid Response Packet) under the No. of Clients per Month they can serve.  
Q15) In congregate sites, can other populations be housed with different funding streams or does it have to just be this program (mixed populations)? For example, if a vendor has one facility with 50 beds and wants to allocate 20 beds for ACPD’s population and the remaining 30 beds to a different funding stream, but all the youth are within the same age range just not in probation or foster care? If yes, can it be the same bedroom?
A15) Yes, however, sharing of bedrooms would need to be determined based on the facility’s program model.  

Q16) Is scattered site housing ok?
A16) Yes, scattered site housing is allowed. Bidders are required to indicate the type of housing being proposed on the Bid Form (page 8 of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet).  The Bid Form requests bidders to select the housing type, provide a proposed monthly rate per client and number of clients you serve. Bidders shall explain how proposed rate was achieved in their Budget Narrative. Payments will be based on the number of clients served. 
Q17) Will the County be providing bidders with any guidelines for rates?
A17) No, because the rates will be evaluated as outlined in the RFP.
Q18) Can the County provide an anchor to help guide bidders regarding rates?
A18) No, that is solely on the bidder to come up with rates. 
Q19) Can the County clarify if bidders need 24/7 staff on site or 24/7 staff on call?
A19) As stated on page 8 of the RFP, Item 4. d.: 

The purpose of this RFP is to provide emergency housing with case management services to participants with 24 hour on-call services for crisis management. Support services will support a secure living environment that works towards fostering stability, health and self- determination to move to more long-term housing.
And on page 14 of RFP, F (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 1.:
Contractor shall have or be able to partner with an existing housing program now serving young adults that have transitioned from the foster care system complete with comprehensive one-on-one case management support; collateral support; plan development and 24 hours a day, 7 days a week crisis response availability.
Q20) Are there other communities that have tried this strategy that ACPD modeled in this RFP within the State of California?
A20) This RFP is not modeled after any other Agency.
Q21) If a bidder has not dealt specifically with TAY but has done transitional housing and has working staff that has experience working with TAY, does the County look at the bidders experience solely or is individual experience also considered when qualifying for experience?
A21) AS stated on page 8 of the RFP, Section C (BIDDER MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS), “A Bidder may be a single vendor that provides services, or a consortium/coalition of vendors working collaboratively to provide services.  Collaborating vendors must name a single, lead prime Bidder that will submit on behalf of collaborating vendors; the prime Bidder shall coordinate all fiscal and administrative duties as needed to provide services under and contract resulting from this RFP. 

The County will be reviewing the Lead Bidding Entity’s experience for this particular bid and not an individual within an entity that has experience working with the NMD and TAY population.
Q22) Is there any requirement for probations involvement in the housing provided by bidder, since Probation will be placing youth? Will probation officers meet at bidder’s facility?
A22) Probation staff will conduct regular on-going site visits to ensure the living conditions are suitable.
Q23) If awarded, is the expectation that beds are held until placement happens and not get paid for them? For example, an awarded bidder has a house with six beds available. ACPD refers three individuals but there are three vacancies. Will the awarded bidder be paid for the three vacancies? Or should the beds be held open and risk losing money for vacant beds?
A23) Bidders should propose the minimum number of beds that they can hold for ACPD. ACPD will pay for the number of beds allocated for their population. 
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